
NOTE:  Anyone with disabilities who needs an accommodation to participate in the meeting should 
             notify the County Manager’s Office at 336-242-2202 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.  

A G E N D A 
 

DAVIDSON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

February 14, 2012 
 

7:00 PM 
 

Commissioners’ Meeting Room 
Governmental Center- 913 Greensboro Street 
Lexington, North Carolina  27292 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND WELCOME 
 
B. INVOCATION 
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
D. RECOGNITION 
 
E. REGISTER FOR PUBLIC ADDRESS 
 
F. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
G. PUBLIC ADDRESS 
 
H. PUBLIC HEARING  

1. Voluntary Agriculture District Ordinance Amendment 
2. Economic Development Incentive to Project Y 

 
I. ITEMS FOR DECISION/INFORMATION – Consent  
 1. Minutes  
 2. Budget Amendments by Zeb Hanner, Assistant County Manager 
 3. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC) Membership 

4. Reappointments 
5. Blue Star Memorial Highway Markers by Commissioner Fred McClure 
6. Hazardous Material Emergency Planning Grant by Jeff Smith, Emergency Services 

Director 
7. Training Grant for Healing Springs Fire Department by Jeff Smith, Emergency Services 

Director 
8. Cameras on Transportation Vehicles by George Hodges, Transportation Manager 

 
J. ITEMS FOR DECISION/INFORMATION – Deliberation  

1. Integrated Solid Waste Management Advisory Board Bylaws by Commissioner Todd 
Yates    

2. Change Order #1 for Extended Day Sewer Extension by Dwayne Childress, Director of 
Support Services and Ben Palmer with Davis-Martin-Powell 

 
K. CLOSED SESSION - Personnel 
   
L. ADJOURNMENT 



COMMISSIONERS’ AGENDA 
 

                                                                                                  Meeting Date:   February 14, 2012       
                                      

                                    Exhibit No.:  H.1.  
 

ITEM:  Amendment to the Davidson County Voluntary Agricultural District Ordinance 
 
ITEM  INFORMATION:   The NC  Legislature  recently  revised  the General  Statues  regarding  the 
requirements  for  property  to  participate  in  a  voluntary  agricultural  district.  The  change 
removed  the  requirement  for  a  property  to  be  participating  or  eligible  to  participate  in  the 
Present‐use Value Tax Program to participate in a voluntary agricultural district. 
 
The  Legislature  also  revised  recording  requirements  for  properties  that  have  a  perpetual 
conservation  agreement. Davidson  County  does  not  utilize  perpetual  agreements  in  its VAD 
Program. 
 
The Davidson County Voluntary Agricultural District Advisory Board recommends that Davidson 
County revise its Ordinance to match the new State Statute as to the eligibility requirements for 
participation. 
 
Because  the  County  does  not  utilize  perpetual  conservation  agreements  the Advisory Board 
recommends no  changes be made  to  the Davidson County Ordinance  in  regard  to  recording 
conservation agreements. 
 
The attached  information provides details on the State changes and the proposed revision to 
Davidson County’s Ordinance. 
 
Andy Miller, Advisor to the VAD Advisory Board, will present the information. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION TO BE TAKEN: Approve/disapprove revisions to the Davidson County VAD Ordinance. 
 
 
 
 
FOLLOW‐UP:  



Proposed Amendment to the Davidson County Voluntary Agricultural District Ordinance 
The Davidson County Voluntary Agricultural District Advisory Board proposes amending the 
Davidson County Voluntary Agricultural District Ordinance to match the revisions approved to 
the NC Voluntary Agricultural Districts Enabling Legislation during the 2011 Legislative Session. 
 
Background: Session Law 2011‐219, House Bill 406 is an Act to provide that land that is engaged 
in  agriculture may qualify for enrollment in a voluntary agricultural district even though it does 
not qualify for taxation at its present‐use value, and to provide that residential lots created on 
land that is subject to a conservation agreement must meet municipal zoning and subdivision 
regulations, and to provide that revocable voluntary agricultural district conservation 
agreements are not required to be recorded.  
 
Following is the text of the approved General Statute: 
 
    “The General Assembly of North Carolina enacts: 
 
  SECTION 1.  G.S. 106‐737 reads as rewritten: 
 
"§ 106‐737.  Qualifying farmland. 
   In order for farmland to qualify for inclusion in a voluntary agricultural district or an 
enhanced voluntary agricultural district under Part 1 or Part 2 of this Article, it must be real 
property that: 

(1)  Is participating in the farm present‐use‐value taxation program established by 
G.S. 105 277.2 through 105‐277.7 or is otherwise determined by the county to 
meet all the qualifications of this program set forth in G.S. 105‐277.3; engaged in 
agriculture as that word is defined in G.S. 106‐581.1. 

  (2)  Repealed by Session Laws 2005‐390, s. 11 effective September 13, 2005. 
(3)  Is managed in accordance with the Soil Conservation Service defined erosion 

control practices that are addressed to highly erodable land; and 
(4)  Is the subject of a conservation agreement, as defined in G.S. 121‐35, between 

the county and the owner of such land that prohibits nonfarm use or 
development of such land for a period of at least 10 years, except for the 
creation of not more than three lots that meet applicable county and municipal 
zoning and subdivision regulations. 

 
  " SECTION 2.  G.S. 121‐41reads as rewritten: 
"§ 121‐41.  Public recording of agreements.  

(a)  Conservation Except as provided in subsection (c) of this section, conservation 
agreements shall be recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds of the county 
or counties in which the subject land or improvement is located, in the same 
manner as deeds are now recorded. 

(b)  Releases or terminations of such agreements shall be recorded in the same 
waiver.  Releases or terminations, or the recording entry, shall appropriately 



identify by date, parties, and book and pages of recording, the agreement which 
is the subject of the release or termination. 

(c)  A conservation agreement entered into for the purpose of enrolling real 
property in a voluntary agricultural district pursuant to G.S. 106‐737(4) is not 
required to be recorded unless such conservation agreement is irrevocable as 
provided pursuant to G.S. 106‐743.2."  

   
SECTION 3.  This act is effective when it becomes law. In the General Assembly read 

three times and ratified this the 15th day of June, 2011 
                 s/  Walter H. Dalton 
            President of the Senate 
                 s/  Thom Tillis 
            Speaker of the House of Representatives 
                 s/  Beverly E. Perdue 
            Governor 
Approved 12:22 p.m. this 23rd day of June, 2011” 
 
G. S. 106‐581.1 Defines agriculture as the following: 
“106‐581.1.  Agriculture defined. 
  
For purposes of this Article, the terms "agriculture", "agricultural", and "farming" refer to all of 
the following: 
  
(1)        The cultivation of soil for production and harvesting of crops, including but not limited 
to fruits, vegetables, sod, flowers and ornamental plants. 
  
(2)        The planting and production of trees and timber. 
  
(3)        Dairying and the raising, management, care, and training of livestock, including horses, 
bees, poultry, and other animals for individual and public use, consumption, and marketing. 
  
(4)        Aquaculture as defined in G.S. 106‐758. 
  
(5)        The operation, management, conservation, improvement, and maintenance of a farm 
and the structures and buildings on the farm, including building and structure repair, 
replacement, expansion, and construction incident to the farming operation. 
  
(6)        When performed on the farm, "agriculture", "agricultural", and "farming" also include 
the marketing and selling of agricultural products, agritourism, the storage and use of materials 
for agricultural purposes, packing, treating, processing, sorting, storage, and other activities 
performed to add value to crops, livestock, and agricultural items produced on the farm, and 
similar activities incident to the operation of a farm. (1991, c. 81, s. 1; 2005‐390, s. 18; 
2006‐255, s. 6.)” 



 
 
The Davidson County Voluntary Agricultural District Advisory Board recommends the 
following amendment to the Davidson County Voluntary Agricultural District Ordinance: 

ARTICLE VII 
  CERTIFICATION AND QUALIFICATION OF FARMLAND 
 
  Requirements 
 
  In order for farmland to qualify for  inclusion  in a voluntary agricultural district  it must be 

real property that: 
 

1. Is  participating  in  the  farm  present‐use‐value  taxation  program  established  by 
N.C.G.S.  §105‐277.2  through  §105‐277.7,  or  is  otherwise  determined  by  the 
county to meet all the qualifications of this program set forth  in G.S. 105‐277.3 ; 
engaged in agriculture as that word is defined by G. S. 106‐581.1. 
 

            2.  Is managed  in  accordance with  the Natural Resources  Soil Conservation  Service 
defined erosion control practices that are addressed to highly erodible land; and 

   
  3.  Is  the  subject  of  a  conservation  agreement,  as  defined  in  N.C.G.S.  §121‐35, 

between  the  county and  the owner of  such  land  that prohibits non‐farm use or 
development of such land for a period of at least ten years, except for the creation 
of not more than three lots that meet applicable county and municipal zoning and 
subdivision regulations. 

 
 









COMMISSIONERS AGENDA 
 

        Date: February 14, 2012 
 
        Exhibit: Attached 
 
 
ITEM:  H.2.  Public Hearing – Economic Incentive Grant 

 

ITEM INFORMATION: __The Board will conduct a public hearing for the 

proposed economic incentive grant referred to as Project Y._________________                            

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________ 

 

ACTION TO BE TAKEN: _Open public hearing and close public hearing.______                             

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________ 

 

FOLLOW-UP: _Approve or reject proposal or approve proposal as changed.____ 











COMMISSIONERS AGENDA 
 

        Date: February 14, 2012_ 
 
        Exhibit: Attached _ 
 
 
ITEM:  I.1  Minutes  

 

ITEM INFORMATION: Minutes of the Davidson County Board of Commissioners’ 

Meeting from January 24, 2012 are attached for your review and consideration. 

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________                             

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________ 

 

ACTION TO BE TAKEN: _Approve/correct and approve____________________                            

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________ 

 

FOLLOW-UP: ____________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________ 



MINUTES 

January 24, 2012 

 The Davidson County Board of Commissioners met on Tuesday, January 24, 2012, at 7:00 PM, in 

the Commissioners’ Meeting Room, of the Governmental Center, at 913 North Greensboro Street, 

Lexington, North Carolina, for a regularly scheduled meeting and a public hearing.  

PRESENT  

 Commissioners:  Vice Chairman Larry Potts, Billy Joe Kepley, Fred McClure, Don Truell, Todd 

Yates 

Others Present  

 County Manager Robert Hyatt, County Attorney Chuck Frye, Assistant County Manager Zeb 

Hanner, Clerk to the Board Anne Burkhart, Health Director Layton Long, Tax Administrator Joe Silver,  

Human Resources Director Jim Tysinger, Support Services Director Dwayne Childress, IT Director Joel 

Hartley, Planning and Zoning Director Guy Cornman, Economic Development Director Steve Googe, Ben 

Palmer of  Davis-Martin-Powell, Libraries Director Ruth Ann Copley, 911 Director Terry Bailey, 

Integrated Solid Waste Management Director Charlie Brushwood, External Services Director Rex Buck, 

Finance Director Jane Kiker, Social Services Director Dale Moorefield 

ABSENT  

 Chairman Sam Watford and Commissioner Cathy Dunn 

EXCUSED  

 On a motion by Commissioner McClure and a second by Commissioner Truell the Board voted 5-

0 to excuse Chairman Sam Watford and Commissioner Cathy Dunn. 

B. INVOCATION  

 Commissioner Fred McClure 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

D. RECOGNITION  

 Vice Chairman Potts recognized Wendy Clodfelter, representing the Davidson County Council of 

Chambers.  

E. REGISTER FOR PUBLIC ADDRESS  



Davidson County Board of Commissioners  
Minutes – January 24, 2012 

2 

 Vice Chairman Potts noted the register for public address.  

F. ADOPTION OF AGENDA  

 On a motion by Commissioner McClure and a second by Commissioner Yates the Board voted  

5-0 to adopt the agenda with the addition of Closed Session for Economic Development. (Exhibit 1)  

G. PUBLIC ADDRESS  

 Barney Hill spoke in opposition to J.2. Wireless Network System (upgrade). 

 David Floyd spoke against increased spending.  

H. PUBLIC HEARING – Golden Leaf Grant – TIMCO  

 Vice Chairman Potts declared the public hearing open to receive public comment on the economic 

development incentive grant contract and leases. 

 Steve Googe presented details of the contract and leases. 

 Barney Hill spoke in opposition to the grant contract and leases.  

 Vice Chairman Potts declared the public hearing closed.  

 Discussion followed with explanations of the payback from TIMCO. 

 On a motion by Commissioner Yates and a second by Commissioner Truell the Board voted 5-0 to 

authorize the (four documents) economic development assistance with funds obtained from a grant to the 

County from the Golden LEAF Foundation and to authorize the leases back to TIMCO.  (Exhibit 2)  

I. ITEMS FOR DECISION/INFORMATION – CONSENT   

 On a motion by Commissioner Truell and a second by Commissioner McClure the Board voted 4-

1 to approve the consent agenda with the removal of I.10. 

1. Minutes  

The Board approved the Minutes of January 5, 2012 and January 10, 2012 Board of  

Commissioners’ meetings. 

2. Budget Amendments by Zeb Hanner, Assistant County Manager 

The Board approved budget amendments for Purchasing, Garage, Transportation, Sheriff, Library, 

Museum, Tax, Social Services, State funds to Humane Society, General Fund to Capital Reserve. 

 (Exhibit 3)   

3. Tax Report of Refunds by Joe Silver, Tax Administrator  



Davidson County Board of Commissioners  
Minutes – January 24, 2012 

3 

The Board approved the Tax Report of Refunds for December 2011.  (Exhibit 4)   

4. Reorganization of Integrated Solid Waste by Jim Tysinger, Human Resources  

The Board approved the reorganization and reclassification proposed for the Integrated Solid  

Waste Department. (Exhibit 5)  

5. Reappointments to the Board of Health by Layton Long, Health Director  

The Board approved the reappointments of Dr. Mark Hamrick, Rev. Lamar Moore, and Mr. Keith  

Raulston to the Board of Health for three-year terms.   (Exhibit 6)  

 6. Addition to the NC Secondary Road System by Guy Cornman, Planning and Zoning 

Director  

 The Board approved the addition of Willowtesh Lane in Greenfield Estates to the NC Secondary 

Road System for maintenance and adopted the SR-2 Resolution. (Exhibit 7) 

 7. Extension of Possession of Property by Seller by Chuck Frye, County Attorney  

 The Board approved the Extension of Possession of Property to Lank Sechrest, the Seller, for the 

property on New Highway 64 East, to allow Mr. Sechrest to relocate and have his business operable. 

  (Exhibit 8) 

 8. Resolution – Welcome Easter Parade  

 The Board adopted the Resolution to Request a Parade Permit for the Welcome Easter Parade. 

  (Exhibit 9) 

 9. Reclassification by Jim Tysinger, Human Resources Director  

 The Board approved the reclassifications of three Public Health Nurse I positions to Public Health 

Nurse II’s.    (Exhibit 10) 

 DELIBERATION 

 10. Right of Entry Agreement w/Time Warner Cable by Dwayne Childress, Support Services  

 On a motion by Vice Chairman Potts and a second by Commissioner Truell the Board voted 5-0 to 

approve the Right of Entry Agreement w/Time Warner Cable. (Exhibit 11)  

 CONSENT 

11. Job Study for 911 by Jim Tysinger, Human Resources Director 

 The Board approved the Job Study for 911.   (Exhibit 12) 



Davidson County Board of Commissioners  
Minutes – January 24, 2012 

4 

J. ITEMS FOR DECISION/INFORMATION – DELIBERATION   

 1. Bid Award – New Middle School Sewer by Dwayne Childress, Support Services Director 

 Dwayne Childress introduced Ben Palmer, Engineer from Davis-Martin-Powell.  Mr. Palmer 

provided details and explanations for questions from the Board.  

On a motion by Commissioner Yates and a second by Commissioner McClure the Board voted 5-

0 to award the bid for the New Davidson County Middle School Sewer to Advanced Development 

Concepts, LLC, at $992,248.25.    (Exhibit 13)  

 2. Wireless Network System by Zeb Hanner, Assistant County Manager  

  Zeb Hanner addressed the Board with supporting information on the need for security in our 

network system and the need for positioning the system for the future.   

 Joel Hartley provided more details on the security issues and needs for upgrading. 

On a motion by Commissioner McClure and a second by Commissioner Truell the Board voted 5-

0 to approve the expenditure of funds to replace existing wireless for $61,053.92 to come from Internal 

Communications charge in the current budget and extend wireless to other county facilities for $43,211.48 

to come from PBB commitments.  

On a motion by Commissioner McClure and a second by Commissioner Truell the Board voted  

5-0 to approve the accompanying budget amendment for the project.  (Exhibit 14) 

CLOSED SESSION   

 On a motion by Commissioner Truell and a second by Commissioner Yates the Board voted 5-0 to 

go into Closed Session for Economic Development.  

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION   

 On a motion by Commissioner Truell and a second by Commissioner McClure the Board 5-0 to 

return to Open Session.  County Attorney Chuck Frye reported discussion of Economic Development with 

no action taken in Closed Session.  County Attorney Frye stated that it would be in order to amend the 

agenda at this time. 

 On a motion by Commissioner McClure and a second by Commissioner Yates the Board voted 5-

0 to amend the agenda to call for a public hearing 



Davidson County Board of Commissioners  
Minutes – January 24, 2012 

5 

On a motion by Commissioner Yates and a second by Commissioner McClure the Board voted 5-

0 to amend the agenda to call for a public hearing to be held on February 14, 2012, at 7:00 PM, in the 

Commissioners’ Meeting Room of the Governmental Center at 913 Greensboro Street, Lexington, North 

Carolina, to receive public comments on the consideration of an Economic Development Incentive Grant 

for Project Y, calculated at .0027 times the investment of $1,000,000+ and 20 jobs over 5 years, not to 

exceed $2,800.00 each year provided the company meets the requirements of the contract as it relates to 

investment and jobs.  

K. ADJOURNMENT 

 On a motion by Commissioner Truell and a second by Commissioner Kepley the Board voted 5-0 

to adjourn. 

    

       __________________________  
       Larry W. Potts, Vice Chairman 
       Davidson County Board of Commissioners 
 
_________________________  
Anne M. Burkhart, Clerk to the Board 
Davidson County Board of Commissioners 
 





























































































































aburkhart
Typewritten Text

aburkhart
Typewritten Text
I.3.







aburkhart
Typewritten Text
I.4.







COMMISSIONERS AGENDA 
 

        Date: February 14, 2012 
 
        Exhibit: Attached_ 
 
 
ITEM:  I.5.  Blue Star Highway Markers 

 

ITEM INFORMATION: Attached please find information regarding Blue Star 

Memorial Highway Markers for your review. _The request being made is for 

appropriation of $2,500.00 for the purchase and installation of two (2) Blue Star 

Memorial Highway Markers ($1,250.00 each) from the County’s Contingency 

Fund.           ______________________________________________________                            

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________ 

 

ACTION TO BE TAKEN: Approval of submission of application for Blue Star 

Highway Marker on behalf of Davidson County; approval of attached Resolution 

and attached Budget Amendment._____________________________________                           

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________ 

 

FOLLOW-UP: As decided by Board of Commissioners._____________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF DAVIDSON 
 

RESOLUTION  
BLUE STAR MEMORIAL HIGHWAY MARKER 

 
WHEREAS, the Blue Star Memorial Highway was projected by the National Garden Clubs, 

Inc., as a living tribute to the men and women of the Nation’s Armed Forces; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is fitting and appropriate that further recognition be accorded the services 
and sacrifices of our citizens so valiantly rendered; and 

 
WHEREAS, the combined garden clubs of Davidson County have elected to sponsor the 

erection of Blue Star Memorial Highway Markers on behalf of the men and women who have 
served their Country; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Davidson County Board of 

Commissioners does hereby request that the combined garden clubs of Davidson County apply for 
the purchase and installation of Blue Star Memorial Highway markers at both the Northbound and 
Southbound roadside rest areas on Interstate Highway 85 in Davidson County; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution be incorporated within the minutes of 

February 14, 2012, and that a copy of the same be sent to the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation as tangible evidence of our official petition to them that they consider and designate 
the above mentioned roadside rest areas on Interstate Highway 85 as appropriate locations for the 
installation of Blue Star Memorial Highway markers; and,  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Davidson County Board of Commissioners 

authorizes the purchase two (2) Blue Star Memorial Highway Markers in the total amount of 
$2,500.00.  

 
This the 14th day of February, 2012. 

 
     ______________________________________ 
     Samuel L. Watford, Chairman 
     Davidson County Board of Commissioners 

Attested to: 
 
___________________________________ 
Deborah J. Harris, Deputy Clerk 
Davidson County Board of Commissioners 





History. 1921, c. 2, ss. 9(a), 9(b); C.S., ss. 3846(q), 3846(r); 1927, c. 148, s. 54; 1933, c. 172, s. 
17; 1957, c. 65, s. 11; 1973, c. 507, s. 5; 1977, c. 464, s. 7.1; 1991, c. 530, s. 1; 1991 (Reg. Sess., 
1992), c. 818, s. 2; 1993, c. 51. 

§ 136-102.1.  Blue Star Memorial and American Ex-Prisoners of War Highway  

All of the United States Highway #70, wherever located in North Carolina shall be known and 
designated as the "Blue Star Memorial and American Ex-Prisoners of War Highway." The 
designation shall pay tribute to the many North Carolinians killed during World War II and to all 
North Carolina's ex-prisoners of war. 

History. Amended by 2001-196, s. 1, eff. 6/13/2001. 

1963, c. 140. 

 

     

 







The Garden Club of North Carolina, Inc  The North Carolina Department of Transportation

The Blue Star 
Memorial Marker 
Program Directory
History Program Directory Contact



Brevard, Transylvania County

Fayetteville, Cumberland County

Greensboro, Guilford County

Hamlet, Richmond County

Hickory, Catawba County

Jacksonville, Onslow County

Jacksonville, Onslow County

Knightdale, Wake County

Manteo, Dare County

Mebane, Alamance County

Monroe, Union County

Murfreesboro, Hertford County

Murphy, Cherokee County

Newport, Carteret County

Reidsville, Rockingham County

Rocky Mount, Nash County

Statesville, Iredell County

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Blue Star Memorial Markers 
Across North Carolina 

I-77 Surry County

I-40 Duplin County

I-40 Catawba County

I-40 McDowell County

I-26 Polk County West

I-26 Buncombe/Henderson

I-95 North Hampton County

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Rest Areas and Visitor’s Centers 
Blue Star Memorial Markers

click on listing to reach page

BLUE STAR MEMORIAL MARKER PROGRAM

HISTORY OF THE BLUE STAR MEMORIALS•

click on listing to reach page



HISTORY OF THE BLUE STAR MEMORIALS

At the close of World War II National Garden Clubs (called National Council of Garden Clubs 
at the time), like other public spirited groups, was seeking a suitable means of honoring our 
service men and women.  Garden Club members visualized a living memorial, preferring to help 
beautify and preserve the country these men and women had fought for, rather than build stone 
monuments in their honor.  

In 1944 Mrs. Lewis M. Hull, Garden Club of New Jersey President and future NCSGC President, 
and Mrs. Vance Hood, Roadside Chairman, had an inspired idea.  One thousand flowering 
Dogwood trees would be planted along five miles of highway, which had been designated the 
Blue Star Drive by the Legislature.  No billboards were to be allowed on the memorial stretch.  
The project was named for the blue star in the service flag, which hung in windows of homes and 
businesses to honor service men and women. 

The guest speaker at the 1945 National Council of State Garden Clubs Annual Meeting in New 
York City was Spencer Miller, New Jersey’s State Highway Commissioner, who had helped to 
implement the New Jersey project.  He proposed that the program be adopted by NCSGC.  At the 
1945 Fall Semi-Annual Meeting, the project was approved.  A “ribbon of living memorial plantings 
traversing every state” called The Blue Star Memorial Highway Program was adopted at the 1946 
Annual Meeting in New Orleans. 

In 1947 Mrs. Frederick R. Kellogg (NCSGC President 1930-1933) designed a marked, which 
would identify the highways. 

Clubs responded enthusiastically, with Rhode Island receiving the first endorsement.  After official 
approval of the site, garden clubs would purchase markers and planting materials.  Highway 
Departments would plant and maintain the area.  This was the first program undertaken by 
garden clubs on a national scale.

While it originally began to honor World War II veterans, it enlarged its mission in 1951 to include 
all men and women, who had served, were serving or would serve in the armed forces of the 
United States.

The need for an extension of the program to accommodate other than dedicated highways 
became apparent.  As a result a smaller By-Way Marker, to be placed in areas such as parks, 
civic and historical grounds, was approved at the 1981 convention in Atlanta.  This marker was 
changed at the 1994 convention in Connecticut to be more descriptive by including the words “A 
tribute to the Armed Forces of America”. 

A third marker had been added at the 1996 convention in Michigan.  This marker was identical to 
the original Blue Star Memorial Highway Marker, except for the removal of the word “Highway”.  
This change allowed the marker to be placed on the grounds of a National Cemetery or Veterans 
Administration Center.  At the 2004 convention in St. Louis the scope of this marker was enlarged 
to include other appropriate civic locations.

Back to Program Directory



Brevard, Transylvania County
Location: Intersection of Broad Street and Caldwell Street
Dedicated: 
Presented by: The Brevard Garden Club

Back to Program Directory



Fayetteville, Cumberland County
Location: Hay Street at Freedom Memorial Park *
Dedicated: March 3, 1956
Presented by: Cross Creek Garden Club

* This marker was originally dedicated on March 3, 1956 at US Highway 301. Since that time it has  
 been moved twice.

Back to Program Directory



Greensboro, Guilford County
Location: East Wendover and Huffine Mill Road in a clover leaf
Dedicated: 1976
Presented by: Greensboro Council of Garden Clubs Inc.

Back to Program Directory



Hamlet, Richmond County
Location: Highway 74, on the site of the New Hamlet Senior Center
Dedicated: October 18, 1984
Presented by: The Hamlet Garden Club

Back to Program Directory



Hickory, Catawba County
Location: 1855 U.S. Highway 70 East bound lane
Dedicated: 
Presented by: Hickory Garden Council

Back to Program Directory



Jacksonville, Onslow County
 
Location: N.C. Highway 24 near city hall going toward Camp Lejeune
Dedicated: May 27, 1984 
Presented by: The Jacksonville Beautification and Appearance Commision and   
 Onslow County Garden Club Council

Back to Program Directory



Jacksonville, Onslow County
Location: U.S. Highway 17 South 
Dedicated: between 1985 - 1993
Presented by: Onslow County Garden Club Council

Back to Program Directory



Knightdale, Wake County
Location: First Avenue and Main Street
Dedicated: 
Presented by:

Back to Program Directory



Manteo, Dare County
  
Location: U.S. Highway 64 and Budleigh Street
Dedicated: 
Presented by: Garden Club of North Carolina

Back to Program Directory



Mebane, Alamance County
Location: U.S. Highway 70 at the Veteran’s Memorial Garden
Dedicated: 
Presented by: Mebane Council of Garden Clubs

Back to Program Directory



Monroe, Union County  
 
Location: Union County Public Library, Monroe Branch *
Dedicated: early 1980’s
Presented by: Monroe Garden Club

* Originally dedicated in the early 1980s at the Monroe City Hall, moved to the library  
 on May 25, 2004

Back to Program Directory



Murfreesboro, Hertford County  
 
Location: Highway 158
Dedicated: 1972
Presented by: Southern Belles High School Garden Club

Back to Program Directory



Murphy, Cherokee County
Location: U.S. 64 West of Murphy
Dedicated: 
Presented by: The Garden Club of North Carolina

Back to Program Directory



Newport, Carteret County
Location: U.S. Highway 70 East and Howard Boulevard 
Dedicated: February 15, 1971
Presented by: Newport Bud ‘N Shrub Garden Club

Back to Program Directory



Reidsville, Rockingham County 
Location: U.S. Highway 158 West (Richardson Drive) and U.S. 29 South Business  
 (Freeway Drive) on the access ramp.  
Dedicated: 
Presented by: Reidsville Council of Garden Clubs

Back to Program Directory



Rocky Mount, Nash County
Location: At the intersection of Wesleyan Boulevard and May Drive
Dedicated: 
Presented by: Garden Club of North Carolina

Back to Program Directory



Statesville, Iredell County  
Location: Intersection of U.S. Highway 64 and U.S. Highway 21 in east Statesville
Dedicated: 1950’s
Presented by: The Brookdale Garden Club

Back to Program Directory



• Rest Areas and Visitor’s Centers Blue Star Memorial Markers •

I-77 Surry County, Welcome Center
Location: Milepost 105, at the Virginia State Line on I-77
Dedicated: July 21, 2006
Presented by: Modern Gardeners Farden Club Surry County Appearance    
 Commission

Back to Program Directory



I-40 Duplin County Rest Area Warsaw
Location: Milepost 364, in median of I-40 and N.C. 24 interchange, 2 miles west of  
 Warsaw on I-40
Dedicated: April 6, 2005
Presented by: Garden Club of NC, Inc.

Back to Program Directory



I-40 Catawba County Rest Area, East Bound 
Lane
Location: Milepost 136, 10 miles East of Conover on I-40
Dedicated: 
Presented by: Garden of Eden Garden Club, Dist. 2

Back to Program Directory



I-40 McDowell County Welcome Center, West 
Bound Lane 
Location: Milepost 82, 3 miles southwest of Marion
Dedicated: 
Presented by: The Marion Council of Garden Clubs

Back to Program Directory



I-26 Polk County Rest Area, West Bound Lane 
Location: At Milepost 36 South of Columbus on I-26
Dedicated: 
Presented by:

Back to Program Directory



I-26 Buncombe/Henderson County, 
West Bound Lane
Location: Milepost 10, 12 miles South of Ashville on I-26
Dedicated: July 18, 2008
Presented by: The Asheville Garden Club

Back to Program Directory



I-95 North Hampton County, Roanoke Rapids
Location: Milepost 181, 1 mile south of Virginia State Line on I-95
Dedicated: 
Presented by: The Garden Clubs of District XII

Back to Program Directory



CONTACT

If you would like to receive more information 
concerning the Blue Star Memorial Marker 
Program please click on:

Back to Program Directory

contact us

https://apps.dot.state.nc.us/ContactUS/PostComment.aspx?Unit=Blue_Star






















































































































































COMMISSIONERS AGENDA 
 

        Date: February 14, 2012 
 
        Exhibit: Attached 
 
 
ITEM:  J.1. Request to Amend/Update Bylaws of Integrated Solid Waste 

Management Advisory Board 

 

ITEM INFORMATION: The Integrated Solid Waste Management Advisory Board 

has requested that the Board of Commissioners approve amendments/updates 

to their Bylaws.____________________________________________________   

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________                             

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________ 

ACTION TO BE TAKEN: Approve/disapprove amendments/updates __________                            

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________ 

 

FOLLOW-UP: _____________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________ 



 Page 1 

Memo 
To: Davidson County Board of Commissioners      

From: ISWM Staff, Solid Waste Stakeholders       

Date: January 11, 2012          

Re: Solid Waste Advisory Committee 

The County Manager has requested that a Solid Waste Advisory Committee 
(SWAC) be created to study issues and make recommendations regarding solid 
waste management within Davidson County.   

In working to accomplish task, an unofficial meeting of stakeholders was held 
on January 11, 2012 to discuss options for the composition of the Solid Waste 
Advisory Committee.  Two SWAC membership models resulted from the 
discussion and are respectfully presented for Board of Commissioners (Board) 
review and recommendation. 

Membership Models: 

1) The five (5) Municipalities (Thomasville, Lexington, Denton, Wallburg and 
Midway) may each appoint one representative to be a voting member on 
the SWAC.  The representative may be of their choosing with no 
restrictions based on solid waste involvement (i.e. staff member, resident, 
hauler, business owner).  Two (2) County residents, appointed by the 
Board, will also be voting members on the SWAC for a total of seven (7) 
Committee members.    

2) Three (3) County residents appointed by the Board; Two (2) unrestricted 
Municipality representatives (i.e. staff member, resident, business owner) 
with one representative appointed from each of two Municipalities, as 
designated by the Board (i.e. Board selects two cities and/or towns who will 

Davidson County 
Integrated 
Solid Waste 
Management 



 Page 2 

each appoint one representative); Two (2) private industry/hauler 
representatives appointed by the Board.   

It is intended that the SWAC meetings will be open to the public and that any 
interested parties may communicate regarding solid waste issues to the SWAC. 

Thank you for your guidance in this matter. 
















	Agenda Cover Sheet
	H.1. Public Hearing - VAD Ordinance Amendment 
	H.2. Public Hearing - Economic Incentive Grant
	I.1. Minutes
	I.2. Budget Amendments
	I.3. JCPC Membership
	I.4. Reappointments
	I.5. Blue Star Memorial Highway Markers
	I.6. Hazardous Material Emergency Planning Grant
	I.7. Training Grant for Healing Springs Fire Department
	I.8. Cameras on Transportation Vehicles
	J.1. Integrated Solid Waste Management Advisory Board Bylaws
	J.2. Change Order #1 for Extended Day Sewer



